
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 
 
AREA PLANS SUBCOMMITTEE B 
Wednesday, 23rd August, 2006 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Gary Woodhall, Democratic Services Officer 
tel: 01992 564470 email:gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors M Colling (Chairman), Mrs S Perry (Vice-Chairman), A Green, R Frankel, 
Mrs A Grigg, S Metcalfe, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 1. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 

SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 
 

 2. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 23 August 2006 
 

2 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 13 - 40) 
 

  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:   
 
(i) Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications, which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)   Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the 
properties listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 7. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  Schedules of planning applications determined by the Head of Planning and Economic 
Development under delegated powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee 
may be inspected in the Members Room or at the Planning and Economic 
Development Information Desk at the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 23 August 2006 
 

3 

  Exclusion:  
 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement:  
 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:   
 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. A map 
showing the venue will be attached to the agenda. 
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes and if you are not present by the time your item is considered, the 
Subcommittee will determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers 
presentations. The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either 
the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should 
the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they 
are required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Agenda Item 1

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Plans Subcommittee B Date: 26 July 2006
   

Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping Time: 7.30  - 8.25 pm 

Members
Present:

M Colling (Chairman), Mrs S Perry (Vice-Chairman), R Frankel, Mrs A Grigg, 
S Metcalfe, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 

Other
Councillors: (none)

Apologies: A Green 

Officers
Present:

B Land (Assistant Head of Planning and Economic Development) and 
G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer) 

14. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 

15. MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2006 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

16. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor S Metcalfe 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of the 
applicant being a client. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 
prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and 
voting thereon: 

• EPF/1021/06 – Coopersale Hall School, Flux’s Lane, Epping. 

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs S Perry, 
C Whitbread and J M Whitehouse declared a personal interest in the following items 
of the agenda, by virtue of being a member of Epping Town Council. The Councillors 
had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1021/06 – Coopersale Hall School, Flux’s Lane, Epping; and 

Agenda Item 2

Page 7



Area Plans Subcommittee B  26 July 2006 

2

• EPF/1040/06 – 42 Bower Hill, Epping. 

17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

18. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 4 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 

19. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 8



Report Item No: 1 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1021/06

SITE ADDRESS: Coopersale Hall School 
Flux's Lane 
Epping
Essex 

PARISH: Epping

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension of existing car park to form overflow car parking. 

DECISION: GRANT 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 

      3 Notwithstanding the surfacing indicated on the approved plan, prior to 
commencement of any development details of surfacing maintaining a grassed 
appearance shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and 
shall be carried out only in accordance with those approved details.      

Report Item No: 2 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1040/06

SITE ADDRESS: 42 Bower Hill 
Epping
Essex 

Minute Item 18

Page 3Page 9



CM16 7AL 

PARISH: Epping

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Roof extension with three front dormer windows. 

DECISION: GRANT 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0991/06

SITE ADDRESS: 1 & 2 Grove Cottages 
64 Ongar Road 
Lambourne
Romford
Essex 

PARISH: Lambourne

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conversion of ancillary buildings to annexe. 

DECISION: GRANT 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 13 June 2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.

3 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

4 The proposed extension shall only be used as ancillary accommodation for the 
existing dwelllinghouse and shall not be occupied as a unit separately from the 
dwelling known as 1 & 2 Grove Cottages. 

Page 4Page 10



5 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 

6 The two stables shown on the approved plan to be removed shall be demolished 
and all debris removed from the site prior to the first occupation of the annex hereby 
approved.

      7 For the avoidance of doubt, notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country 
General Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Part 1, Classes A - E, shall be undertaken without the prior 
written permission of the Local Planning Authority.    

Report Item No: 4 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1024/06

SITE ADDRESS: The Chase 
146 London Road 
Lambourne
Romford
Essex 
RM4 1XX 

PARISH: Lambourne

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Front boundary screen and gateway. (Revised application) 

DECISION: GRANT 

CONDITIONS:

Page 5Page 11



1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 

4 The development must not commence until details of the hedge planting, as shown 
on the approved plan no. 2622/1A and a statement of the methods of its 
implementation have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved 
in writing. 

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 

The hedge planting must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 

Page 6Page 12



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘B’ 

23 August 2006 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/1203/06 Land at Maltings Drive, Epping GRANT 15 

2. EPF/1248/06 12 Theydon Place, Epping GRANT 19 

3. EPF/1030/06 Former Parade Ground, Merlin 

Way, North Weald 

 

NB this item has been referred 

to the District Development 

Control Committee 

GRANT 23 

4. EPF/1158/06 North Weald Airfield, Merlin Way, 

North Weald 

GRANT 36 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1203/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land at Maltings Drive 

Epping  
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

APPLICANT: D Hunt 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of car port and garden shed. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 09/08/2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee at the request of Councillor Colling. 
 
 
Description of Proposal: 
  
Consent is being sought for the erection of a carport and shed. 
 
The carport would be located to the north west of the site adjacent to the entrance to Maltings 
Drive from Palmers Hill on land, which is being lawfully developed for the erection of a house.  The 
carport would be 4m wide by 6m deep with a ridge height of 4.3m. Access to the carport would be 
from within the site.  Access to the site off Maltings Drive is 10m east of the junction with Palmers 
Hill. 
 
The shed would be located in the curtilage of the same house to the south east side of the site 
adjacent to the boundary fence with No. 6A Palmers Hill.  The shed would be 2.5m wide by 3.2m 
deep by 3.1m high. 
 
Both buildings would be finished in timber boarding and plain tiles. 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Description of Site: 
 
An irregular area of land once populated by trees and shrubs, now with permission for a new 
dwelling, located to the north west of The Maltings, a grade II listed terrace. The plot is on the east 
side of Palmers Hill, screened from the road by a number of mature trees. The access road into 
the site is from the north and runs to the east side of the plot which was historically a through road, 
but which is now blocked adjacent to 6A Palmers Hill. To the south east of the site are a number of 
high mature trees which screen some of the site from No. 6A. A 1.6m fence separates the plot 
from this adjacent house, which itself is on lower ground. The site lies within the Epping Town 
Conservation Area. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPO/96/65 – Outline application for the erection of two detached houses – refused 
EPF/1859/80 – Two detached houses - refused 
EPF/423/05 – Erection of a detached dwelling with integral garage – Withdrawn 
EPF/1240/05 – Erection of a detached dwelling – Approved with Conditions 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 

Local Plan 
 
HC6 – Development affecting Conservation Areas 
HC7 – Development within Conservation Areas 
HC12 – Development affecting the setting of Listed Buildings 
DBE1 –Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on existing buildings 
DBE9 – Amenity 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues here relate to the impact on the Conservation Area, any impact on the adjacent 
Listed Building, the design of the carport and shed and the potential impact on the amenity of the 
neighbours.  
 

Impact on the Conservation Area 
 
The proposed carport located on the north west side of the site will be both visible from within 
Maltings Drive and from the entrance to Palmers Hill, however much of it would be screened from 
the road and according to the Council’s Conservation Officer would have little effect on the 
character of the Conservation Area. The carport is to be weather boarded with a tiled roof. To 
ensure that these are acceptable it can be conditioned that the external materials be approved 
prior to construction. Whilst works have already commenced on the carport in terms of the brick 
plinth some 8 courses high, much of this will not be visible once ground has been levelled resulting 
in a smaller plinth with weatherboarding above. 
 
The shed would be located on the south east side of the site and would be less visible from the 
surrounding area. Again, subject to the approval of external materials the Council’s Conservation 
Officer has no objections. 

Page 16



Impact on Listed Building 
 
The carport will be not be visible from the listed terrace to the south of the site. The upper part of 
the shed will be visible, mainly from the first floor front windows and hardstanding in front of No. 
6A. The shed will be located some 8m from the property and given its size and existing screening, 
it is not considered to materially detract from the setting of the Listed Building.  

Design 
 
In terms of design, neither buildings are overly intrusive in terms of their size on their plot and in 
relation to the other buildings in the surrounding area. The Council’s Conservation Area Officer 
has no objections and both the shed have been designed to be in keeping with the approved 
dwelling. 

Amenity 
 
The carport would have no impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties. With regards to 
the shed, the occupiers at No. 6A Palmers Hill are concerned that the shed would tower above 
their fence just a few metres from their front door. It is noted that the shed is 3.1m high. The fence 
erected along the southern boundary is 1.6m. Therefore 1.5m of shed would be visible from the 
adjacent plot. Also the site is approximately 500mm lower at the point adjacent to where the shed 
would be located. However, it is appreciated that the view across to the trees fronting Palmers Hill 
would be lessened; there is no legal right to this view. This is combined with the fact that 
immediately to the north east of his front door are a number of mature trees, which screen the view 
as it stands. It is considered therefore that the shed would have little impact on the amenities of 
the neighbouring property and would not be a reasonable justification for refusal. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposal is an acceptable form of development that would preserve the character and 
appearance of the Epping Conservation Area and complies with adopted planning policy.  It is 
therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL  – No objections 
 
NO. 6 PALMERS HILL – Object on the grounds that it is an extensive building in a conservation 
area and would be an eyesore from our house; it extends up to the boundary with No. 6A; Council 
is not taking a consistent approach. 
 
NO. 6A PALMERS HILL – Object on the grounds that the shed would be immediately to the east 
of my front door and will fundamentally alter the aspect of my property; its effect is exaggerated as 
ground level my side is lower by 1m; it will tower above my fence; site is in conservation area; 
carport looks like a garage without doors; integral garage not acceptable first time round. 
 
ORCHARD HOPPET – No objections 

Page 17



 

 

CR

TIDY'S LANE

DRIVE

MALTINGS

LANE

PA
LM

ER
S

HI
LL

MALT

IN
G

S

B
 1

8 1

LB

11
1.

3m

MS

BM
 1

06
.9

9m

EP104.9m

108.5m GP

War Meml

Posts

Fairlawns

Ackworth

O
ak

le
ig

h

12 to 17

6 to 11

1

Scout Hall

1 to 4

7

Trees

Hill Crest

5 
to

 

1 
to

 5

No
rm

an
dy

Sh
el

te
r

Malting

Lodge

1

6

1 
to

 1
6 Redgrove

House

8

6a

Oak

Spriggs

Spriggs

1 to 9

The P
um

p  H
ouse

7

37

9

1

El Sub Sta

Hill H
ou

se

he Barn

39

Court

31

35

*

*

* * *

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee B 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 

Application Number: EPF/1203/06 

Site Name: Land at Maltings Drive, Epping. 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250 

Page 18



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1248/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 12 Theydon Place 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4NH 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mr Sayers 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey side extension, (with a single storey 
rear projection) and a first floor front extension. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 
 
The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 
 
The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 
  
The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 

 
 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
It is proposed to construct a two storey side extension with single storey rear projection and a first 
floor front extension. 
 

Page 19



The side extension would extend 5.2m towards the western boundary of the site, leaving 2.9m to 
the boundary with the footpath.  It would be 7m wide and have a hipped roof matching the pitch of 
the existing roof.  The roofline would be set slightly lower that that of the existing. 
 
The single storey rear projection to the two storey extension would have a pitched roof and project 
by 3.8m. 
 
The first floor front extension would be built over an existing ground floor projection.  It would also 
have a hipped roof matching the pitch of the existing roof. 
 
Part of the area under an existing canopy would be in filled to provide a ground floor W.C. but this 
does not require planning permission and not the subject of this application. 
 
 
Description of Site:  
   
Detached property situated on the southern side of Theydon Place at a junction. 
 
The house is situated within the urban area of Epping and is within a blanket tree protection area 
(there are 2 preserved trees on a grass verge outside the site).   
 
The property is not within a Conservation Area. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
  
No history 
 
  
Policies Applied: 
 
Local Plan: 
 
DBE 9  Impact of extensions on amenity 
DBE10  Design of residential extensions 
 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
 
The key issues relevant to this application are the design and appearance in the street scene, the 
impact upon neighbouring properties and the implications for any protected trees in the vicinity. 
 
This property is positioned on a sizable, corner plot and there is clear potential for extensions.  The 
side extension will project 5.2m to flank of this property, although a gap of some 2.9m is still left to 
the site boundary.  This ensures that this development will not be of a cramped appearance in 
relation to the site.  
 
This property forms part of a line of 4 similar detached properties with a similar set-back from the 
road forming a strong building line.  The first floor front extension will maintain this pattern in the 
street scene and the matching roof design will complement the side elevation of the neighbouring 
property.  This is an improvement over the appearance of the existing flat-roofed front projection.  
Furthermore, the rear extension will be barely visible from the street in light of the 1.8m wall which 
screens the rear of the property. 
 

Page 20



The concerns detailed from the Town Council (regarding the impact of this development within the 
street scene) are noted, although it is not felt that this proposal deviates significantly from the 
general style of properties in the locality.  There are 4 similar detached properties to the east, 
although they are of an assortment of sizes, with number 14 benefiting from a similar extension to 
that proposed which was granted planning permission in 2001.  On the opposite sites of Theydon 
Place to the north and east are bungalow style properties, which form an established contrast with 
the group of large two storey houses this property forms part of. 
 
In terms of amenity, due to the nature of the site there will be no impact upon neighbouring 
properties from the side or rear extensions.  Furthermore, the front extension does not project any 
further than the existing building and will not cause any excessive overlooking of neighbouring 
properties. 
 
With regard to the protected trees close to the site, although they would not be affected by the 
completed development, it is important to ensure the construction process does not involve placing 
building materials and vehicles close by where damage might be caused to roots or branches. 
This can be controlled, however, through the imposition of appropriate planning conditions on any 
consent granted. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Given that this property is located on a large site within the urban area, these extensions are not 
contrary to the policy criteria.  The appearance of the street scene contains a mix of properties and 
as such this development is not considered to significantly detract from the locality. 
 
In addition to the above, there is minimal impact upon neighbouring properties and the 2 protected 
trees in the vicinity.  On this basis approval is therefore recommended. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
TOWN COUNCIL - Object, given the design proposals are not in keeping with the existing street 
scene and uniform design style of the area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



  

 

PLACE

THEYDON

THEYDON P
LA

CE

th
(um

)

92b

92

24

Sub

71

69

16

El

Sta

2

98

11
6

1

15

2

77

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee B 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 

Application Number: EPF/1248/06 

Site Name: 12 Theydon Place, Epping. 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250 

Page 22



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1030/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Parade Ground  

Merlin Way 
North Weald  
Epping 
Essex 
 

PARISH: North Weald 
 

APPLICANT: Crest Nicholson (Eastern) Ltd 
  

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Reserved matters application for the erection of 141 no. one, 
two, three and four bedroom apartments and houses together 
with associated roads, parking, ancillary buildings and 
landscaped area. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The fencing, or other protection which is part of the approved Statement shall not be 
moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works, including external works 
have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials removed 
from the site. 
 
The Arboricultural Method Statement shall indicate the specification and timetable of 
any tree works, which shall be in accordance with the British Standard 
Recommendations for Tree Works (BS.3998: 1989). 
 
The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a scheme for the inspection and 
supervision of the tree protection measures. The scheme shall be appropriate to the 
scale and duration of the works and may include details of personnel induction and 
awareness of arboricultural matters; identification of individual responsibilities and 
key personnel; a statement of delegated powers; frequency, dates and times of 
inspections and reporting, and procedures for dealing with variations and incidents. 
The scheme of inspection and supervision shall be administered by a suitable 
person, approved by the local planning authority but instructed by the applicant.   
 

2 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).   
 
If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 

This item has been referred 
to the next meeting of the 

District Development Control 
Committee 

Page 23



such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.  
 

3 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) have 
been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and these 
works shall be carried out as approved.  These details shall include, as appropriate, 
and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels 
or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle artefacts and 
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below 
ground.  Details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or 
establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, 
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers / densities where appropriate.  
If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

4 No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a 
minimum period of five years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The schedule shall include details of the arrangements for 
its implementation.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved schedule. 
 

5 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 10/08/2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

6 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of development.  The assessment shall include 
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using 
Windes or other similar programme.  The approved measures shall be undertaken 
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall e adequately 
maintained. 
 

7 No unbound material shall be used in the surface finish of the driveway within 6m of 
the highway boundary of the site. 
 

8 The carriageways of the proposed estate roads shall be constructed up to and 
including at least road base level, prior to the commencement of the erection of any 
dwelling intended to take access.  The carriageways and footpaths shall be 
constructed up to and including base course surfacing to ensure that each dwelling 
prior to occupation has a properly consolidated and surfaced carriageway and 
footway, between the dwelling and the existing highway.  Until final surfacing is 
completed, the footway base course shall be provided in a manner to avoid any 
upstands to gullies, covers, kerbs, or other such obstructions within or bordering the 
footway.  The carriageways, footways and footpaths in front of each dwelling shall 
be completed with final surfacing within twelve months or three months in the case 

Page 24



of a shared surface road from the occupation of such dwelling. 

9 The Proposed bellmouth junction with the existing highway, inclusive of cleared land 
necessary to provide the sight splays, shall be constructed and be available for use 
prior to the commencement of any other development including the delivery of 
materials. 
 

10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1 Class A, B, C and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

11 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the report of the acoustic 
consultants received on 22/08/2002. 
 

12 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

13 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 
 

14 No bonfires shall be permitted on site throughout the demolition and construction 
phase of the development. 
 

15 All reasonable steps to minimise dust emissions from the site shall be employed 
throughout the demolition and construction phase of the development. 
 

 
 
 
Description of Proposal: 
  
This application is for the approval of Reserved Matters following the grant of outline planning 
permission for a residential development on 8 May 2006, Ref EPF/1655/06.  The only matter of 
detail given consent under the outline planning permission is the means of access to the site, 
which would be principally from York Road with a secondary access off Blenheim Way.  All other 
matters of detail, including the number and mix of dwellings, were reserved for subsequent 
consideration. 
 
The outline planning permission was granted following the completion of a legal agreement under 
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning act 1990.  Under the agreement the developer has 
covenanted to: 
 

1. Provide affordable housing in accordance with formula designed to deliver such housing at 
a rate of just under 30% of the total number of dwellings provided on the site. 

2. Provide additional off-street parking on land outside the site. 

Page 25



3. Provide a financial contribution for the provision of education. 
4. Carry out off-site highway works. 

 
The details for which approval is sought under this application relate to the erection of 141 one, 
two, three and four bedroom apartments and houses together with associated roads, parking, 
ancillary buildings and landscaped area. 
 
The site layout proposed would be based on a primary access road through the site on a north-
south axis serving the secondary access road and a cycle footpath link to Merlin Way.  The built 
form would comprise housing and apartments arranged to provide a continuous frontage 
overlooking the street, areas of public open space and access links.  Public and private space 
would be defined through the creation of pinch points and the use of a variety of finished materials 
and means of enclosure. Parking areas would be mainly in parking courts to the rear or undercroft 
between buildings. 
 
The buildings would be predominantly a mix of two and three storey buildings with the houses 
generally two storey and apartments provided in the form of three storey blocks.  The northern 
boundary of the site would be emphasised by the use of apartment blocks with the sole four-storey 
block in the development used to provide a focal point at the north end of the primary route.  Three 
storey apartment blocks would also be situated amongst two storey housing in the centre of the 
site to emphasise the frontage to the primary access road and to provide a visual stop to the 
southern end of Merlin Way.  Houses described as three storey that appear as two storey with 
accommodation in the roof would be used to further break up a predominantly two-storey 
development.  To the rear of houses and apartment blocks would be a small number of single 
storey buildings serving as garages, cycle stores or bin stores. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site lies within the built-up area of North Weald. To the west of the site is Bookers Warehouse 
depot and North Weald Industrial estate, whilst to the south and east is an existing residential 
area, namely residences in Lancaster Road, Beaufort Close, Hampden Close and York Road. The 
open expanse of North Weald Airfield is immediately to the north. 
 
The application site comprises 2.1 hectares of relatively level topography and is currently occupied 
by a mix of concrete hardstanding, a number of buildings including an electricity substation and a 
substantial bunker on the northern part of the site. There are a number of substantial trees, which 
have been planted as well as self-seeded new growth, which has spread across the site. 
 
Access to the site is currently from Merlin Way or from Blenheim Way via York Road to the south. 
Access from Lancaster Road has been closed off. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1075/89 – Warehouse with ancillary office accommodation and external works – approved 
with conditions 09/10/89 
EPF/1655/02 – Outline application for redevelopment to provide residential development with 
accesses from Blenheim Way and York Road, with associated parking and landscaping – 
approved with conditions 09/05/06 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Policies Applied: 
 
Structure Plan: 
 
CS1 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Regeneration 
BE1 – Urban Intensification 
H2 – Housing Development – The Sequential Approach 
H3 – Location of Residential Development 
H4 – Development Form of New Residential Developments 
H5 – Affordable Housing 
 
Local Plan and Local Plan Alterations: 
 
CP4A – Energy Conservation 
CP5A – Sustainable Building 
CP6A – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns 
CP7A – Urban Form and Quality 
H2A – Previously Developed Land 
H3A – Housing Density 
H4A – Dwelling Mix 
H7A – Levels of Affordable Housing Provision 
H9A – Lifetime Homes 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Impact on existing surrounding properties 
DBE3 – Development in urban areas 
DBE5 – Design and layout 
DBE6 – Design and location of car parking 
DBE7 – Public open space 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Impact on amenity 
LL10 – Retention of trees 
LL11 – Landscaping scheme 
ST4A – Road Safety 
ST6A – Vehicle Parking 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
The Essex design Guide 
Essex Planning Officers Association Vehicle Parking Standards 
 
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The key issues for consideration relevant to this reserved matters application are as follows: 
 

1. Siting, design and density of development 
2. Provision of affordable accommodation 
3. Impact on neighbouring properties in the surrounding area 
4. Landscaping and effect on preserved trees 
5. External materials and finish 
6. Highways matters 

 
 
 
 

Page 27



1. Siting, design and density of development 
 
The original application quoted a specific number of dwellings on site, although the Council 
resolved to grant outline planning consent solely on the basis on the principle of residential 
development.  The reserved matters element of any scheme was left for negotiation with the 
Planning Authority by the developer, to obtain permission for the layout and precise number of 
dwellings on site. 
 
This current reserved matters application proposes 141 units, which would create density of some 
67 units per Hectare.  Whilst this might appear rather high, given the regular shape of the site and 
access provision from 2 locations at the southern boundary, this density is not unreasonable.  In 
particular, the level of off-street car parking and private amenity space provision together with the 
relationship between buildings is in accordance with adopted supplementary planning guidance. 
 
This application proposes 49 of the 141 units to be apartments.  Government guidance (PPG 3: 
Housing) requires development to make the most efficient use of land and provide a wider choice 
in terms of the type and size of housing.  Clearly a development which proposes only traditional 
‘family’ homes would be more suited to a density of 30 –50 dwellings per hectare, (as set out in 
Circular 01/02: residential density). However, given the mix of dwellings to be constructed (49 
apartments), the higher density is justified on site.  In addition, the consultation paper on the 
forthcoming PPS 3: Housing, proposes that densities of 40 – 75 dwellings per hectare is an 
acceptable range for urban areas. 
 
Government guidance contained in PPS 1: Delivering Sustainable Development, advises that 
Local Authorities reject poor design, which is clearly incompatible with its surroundings.  The 
proposed design for the scheme has been produced through consultation with the Local Planning 
Authority and is considered to be of an acceptable form with regard to this specific location within 
North Weald. 
 
The central area of this site includes a rectangular semi private parking area, which is accessed by 
a pathway to the south.  The retained access to this central block is necessary due to the high 
voltage cables, which run through the site.  This area was considered to be problematic in terms of 
the ease with which non-residents can access the semi private parking area in the centre.  Whilst it 
might be preferable to incorporate the small square of access land (to the west of plot 37) into the 
private space of plot 37, site constraints prevent this (high voltage cables).  It has been negotiated 
however that 1.5m fencing and soft closing gate is an agreeable compromise that improves on the 
definition of public and private space in this area of the site. 
 
Concerns regarding the lack of amenity space to the apartments to the north of the site are noted, 
although it is considered the given the generously sized balconies, (which are arguably a more 
useable space for flat residents), that additional green amenity space for these units is not 
essential.  
 
 
2. Provision of affordable accommodation 
 
The overall percentage of affordable accommodation as part of this scheme totals 27%.  While this 
is slightly below the usual figure of 30%, this figure is in accordance with the Section 106 
agreement. 
 
Originally this it was intended that 6 additional affordable units would be provided on the adjacent 
site above a proposed medical centre.  However, this development is no longer going ahead and 
as such it is considered inappropriate by housing services to expect the developer to provide 
additional affordable units. 
 

Page 28



In terms of this proposal, 55% of the affordable accommodation will be in the form of flats.  The 
evidence demonstrates (2003 Epping Forest Housing Needs Survey) that the demand for flats is 
54% compared with other accommodation.  Flats are under represented in the stock at 17.8% and 
therefore this scheme addresses this identified need in housing demand. 
 
On balance, it is considered by Housing Services that the balance between affordable and market 
housing is unlikely to be exactly met, although this scheme does meet the spirit of the Section 106 
agreement of the outline permission as approved.  Accordingly the mix of affordable 
accommodation proposed is appropriate to the development and locality that would be a positive 
contribution to meeting the need for affordable accommodation in the District. 
 
3. Impact on neighbouring properties 
 
Concerns have been raised from residents in the locality and the Parish Council regarding the 
scale of the new properties.  In particular, the general scale being too overbearing and tightly 
packed in light of the existing properties in the area.  However, the majority of the larger 3 storey 
apartments (and the single 4 storey block) are located to the north west of the site and are located 
some distance from the existing residential streets.  Accordingly, while the new development will 
clearly have its own character, it would not be an unduly sharp contrast with the established local 
character. 
 
More specifically, number 40 Hampden Close has objections to this proposal due to the close 
proximity of the apartments located in plots 6 to 11.  There is however some 17m separating the 
rear of these apartments and the elevation facing this property is only 6m in width.  There is not 
therefore considered to be a significant impact upon the visual amenities enjoyed by this property. 
 
There have also been queries regarding the accuracy of the submitted plans.  In particular the 
actual dwelling size of the ‘Sandown’ housing and the height of the apartments occupying plots 6 
to 11.  These discrepancies have subsequently been addressed and amended plans have been 
received from the developer. 
 
Overall, the development would have a positive relationship to surrounding residential 
development that would not be harmful to amenity. 
 

4. Landscaping and effect on preserved trees 
 
The development site contains many preserved trees and this scheme proposes to retain 19 of 
them.  The trees that are to be removed are of a poorer quality and appropriate landscaping can 
be secured on the site to compensate for their loss through the imposition of appropriate 
conditions on any consent granted. 
 
Numerous representations have been received from local residents regarding the loss of green 
space and wildlife associated with this development.  Whilst this site in its derelict state may have 
encouraged wildlife in the locality, this site is in a poor state of repair and has no usability for local 
residents as a public open space.  This scheme will dramatically improve the appearance of this 
previously developed site, to the benefit of residents of surrounding properties.   The most 
valuable aspects of this area from a nature conservation perspective, the 19 preserved trees, are 
to be retained. 
 
The site area of this development does include a narrow strip of land to the north that remains in 
the ownership of the Local Authority together with a small strip of land to the east of the site, 
directly north of the site access that has not been sold to the developer.  It is proposed that these 

Page 29



areas will be dealt with by including them within an overall landscaping scheme for the 
development. 
 
 
6. External materials and finishes 
 
It has been previously agreed with the Officers that a mix of brick and rendering is generally the 
preferred finishing for the housing on this development.  The scheme provides that the finish of 
dwellings for affordable housing would be the same as that for open market housing in order to 
ensure there is no visual distinction between dwellings of different tenure. 
 
In addition to the above, other materials of construction have been discussed with the developer, 
including weatherboarding on the prominent garages and appropriate roof tiling.  These issues can 
all be addressed through the imposition of the relevant planning conditions should consent be 
granted. 
 

7. Highways and other considerations 
 
The means of access and linkages on site have already been agreed as part of the original 
planning consent granted in 2002.  On this basis the highways authority do not object to this 
reserved matters application, subject to specific detailed conditions to ensure adequate highway 
safety on site.  (This includes the provision of clear sight splays and appropriate surface 
materials). 
 
Numerous concerns have been raised from those residents in close proximity to the electricity 
substation to the south east of the site.  These concerns relate to the increased noise nuisance 
likely to occur as a result of the use of a proposed parking area required to be provided by the 
Section 106 Agreement that is outside the application site.  While these concerns are recognised, 
and the construction of a fence to screen properties 31 – 33 York Road might be justified, this 
application does not directly relate to this area.  An additional application will be necessary prior to 
the occupation of the site to deal with the details of off site car parking areas required by the 
planning obligation. 
 
Many representations have been received regarding the inadequate infrastructure in the village 
and the lack of community facilities to be provided as part of the scheme.  However, these issues 
are not material considerations for this reserved matters application and have already been 
addressed as part of the original outline application, such as through the requirement to make 
financial contributions to education provision and off-site highway works. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The concerns of residents in the locality, the Parish Council and other representations have been 
given due consideration, but it is concluded that this reserved matters application is acceptable.  
 
The density of the development is acceptable given the mix of housing type and dual access to the 
south of the site.  The level of affordable housing is in accordance with the Section 106 Agreement 
and there is not considered to be a material impact upon the amenities of existing properties.  In 
terms of design and layout, the proposal would be a high quality development that would respect 
the established local character while safeguarding amenity. 
 

Page 30



Highways and access issues have already been agreed as part of the original outline application 
and the provision of good landscaping can be achieved through the imposition of appropriate 
planning conditions. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL - Object, this proposal represents overdevelopment on site.  Housing densities 
are above government guidance and 3 to 4 stories not in keeping with the area.  The Parish 
Council would not consider housing numbers above those agreed in the earlier outline consent. 
 
Insufficient screening between properties and large new structures create overshadowing. 
 
Highway access inappropriate and the primary access should be via Blenheim Way with a 
secondary route via York Road.  A third emergency access is recommended via Merlin Way. 
 
Development does not include provision of new community facilities and the impact on existing 
facilities is a concern (e.g. education).  
 
The development would use the remaining capacity of sewerage facilities.   
 
The Parish Council recognises the need to retain adequate screening and an environmental audit 
is required on site. 
 
A flood risk assessment is required as well as a crime prevention audit on site. 
 
Also inaccuracies on the plan. 
 
BASSETTS GREEN RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION - Object due to highway safety concerns 
regarding York Way.  Also development has a lack of new community facilities, inappropriate 
design, overdevelopment of the site and will result in increased occurrence of anti social 
behaviour. 
 
CAMPAIGN TO PROTECT RURAL ESSEX - Have concerns regarding the percentage of 
affordable housing. 
 
The provision of infrastructure will need consideration for example water and sewerage and bus 
service 
 
ST ANDREWS PRIMARY SCHOOL - Concerns regarding growing number of children in the 
village and associated pressure on the school.  Assistance for works to the school requested from 
the developer. 
 
IT DOES LIMITED LIGHTING DESIGN - Church Lane and Lancaster Road in need of relighting. 
 
53 HAMPDEN CLOSE - North Wealds existing roads cannot cope.  Also inadequate provision of 
local surgeries and water resources. 
 
64 YORK ROAD - Too many houses for the area and concerns regarding an increased risk of 
flooding and traffic congestion.  Also increased pressure on reservoirs and local infrastructure. 
 
4 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Main road is too narrow to accommodate extra vehicles and the proposed 
development will impact on schools and medical facilities in the area. 
 

Page 31



20 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Inappropriate development not in keeping with the area and insufficient 
infrastructure in the area. 
 
29, 31, 33 and 35 HAMPDEN CLOSE - The removal of the existing substation will create a loss of 
privacy.  In addition objections are raised to the increased noise from the extra traffic and 
associated highway safety issues.  The sewerage system is also deemed to be inadequate to 
cope with the extra homes.  This representation also details general concerns regarding the scale 
of new buildings, which will lead to an invasion of privacy. 
 
Wider issues relating to public transport provision and wildlife retention are discussed within the 
letter and are believed to require more thought and consideration.   
 
The residents request that if consent is granted then a high wall is erected in place of the 
demolished substation. 
 
29 HAMPDEN CLOSE - York road is too small to accommodate the existing traffic.  The new car 
park in place of the electricity substation will cause a blind spot to those using the existing car 
park.  It is also felt there will be a general increase in traffic problems and the opening of North 
Weald train station would help the problem.  A loss of wildlife and lack of infrastructure are detailed 
as requiring more consideration in the letter. 
 
31 HAMPDEN CLOSE - This house is currently screened by the existing electricity substation 
although this is to be removed as part of the scheme.  The resulting effect will compromise the 
privacy of the property and increase disturbance from traffic. 
 
The impact of increased use of York Road will also magnify traffic problems in the surrounding 
area.  Speed restriction and traffic humps are suggested to mitigate the above.  Also the provision 
of high wall be placed at the boundary of the car park (in place of the substation) be provided. 
 
32 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Object due to the development impacting on tranquillity of the area.  Also 
concerns regarding the construction and demolition on site.  More specific issues are raised with 
regard to incorrect elevations to the rear of this property. 
 
33 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Major concerns regarding the proposed access road and the increased 
traffic, which will pass in front of this property.  This will also create a blind spot for users of the 
existing car park.  More general reservations are detailed regarding the overdevelopment of the 
site. 
 
34 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Development not in keeping with the culture of the village.  Also concerns 
regarding privacy and noise from the removal of the bunker. 
 
35 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Has concerns regarding environmental issues, (wildlife on site), 
Sewerage provision, the route planning for contracting vehicles, car parking in place of the 
substation (headlights disturbing residential properties), the width of York Road as a primary 
access, too much affordable housing, policing, the principle site access, public transport provision 
and the amount of housing changing the character of the village. 
 
40 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Strongly object to the siting of plots 6-11 in close proximity to this 
property.  These plots should be located further north. 
 
51 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Concerns regarding the size of the development and noise and pollution.  
The access road to rear of this property is viewed as unacceptable and it is felt that compensation 
should be given. 
 

Page 32



61 HAMPDEN CLOSE - Strongly appose the cutting back of mature and established trees on site.  
In addition, the height of buildings greater than 2 storeys is likely top devalue existing properties in 
the vicinity. 
 
11A LANCASTER ROAD - The number of dwellings seems excessive for the small area of land.  
The area appears to be inadequate for the parking of cars and there is likely to be an overflow of 
vehicles on surrounding roads.  There are no facilities provided for young children/families. 
 
37 LANCASTER ROAD - Overdevelopment on the site, which would result in a detrimental quality 
of life for neighbouring properties.  The loss of established flora and fauna will have an 
environmental impact. Parking problems associated with the access and generally North Weald is 
a village with limited resources and this development will overstretch them. 
 
40 LANCASTER ROAD - Erosion of the historic village and lack of infrastructure in village o cope 
with the extra housing 
 
29 YORK ROAD - Scale of housing to big creating a strain on local infrastructure.  Unhappy with 
the positioning of the access and associated parking problems. 
 
29 YORK ROAD - Unhappy that the level of infrastructure is insufficient with the scale of the 
village, particularly the extra traffic on local roads. 
 
49 YORK ROAD - Blenheim Road is not adopted and it is questionable how this can be a 
secondary access.  The increased volume of traffic is felt to impact on local streets with associated 
road safety implications.  It is felt that the height of the new houses at 3 or 4 stories would create 
an invasion of privacy and overshadowing. 
 
The loss of established trees is noted, as is the impact of noise and pollution from this large 
development.  The development puts extra strain on infrastructure of the area. 
 
52 YORK ROAD - Questions the use of Blenheim Way as a secondary access road and York 
Road as a primary access road. Furthermore the construction of 3 or 4 story buildings will 
overshadow existing properties in the surrounding area.  The scheme will involve the removal of 
trees and will place and unacceptable increase and strain on the existing infrastructure. 
 
68 YORK ROAD - Object on highway grounds.  York way is unsuitable as the only access road 
and Merlin Way would be a more suitable alternative. 
 
9 WELLINGTON ROAD - Access via York Road is unsuitable to support the volume of extra traffic.  
The increase noise and pollution from the extra homes is also of concern as are the scale of the 
proposed buildings.  It is also highlighted that North Weald does not have adequate facilities to 
accommodate the new numbers of housing. 
 
11 WELLINGTON ROAD - The proposed primary site access is viewed to be totally inadequate, 
with already poor visibility at the junction of York Road and Wellington Road.  The proposed 3 and 
4 storey buildings are of a scale out of character with the surrounding village.  The number of trees 
to be destroyed would be a disaster for local wildlife.  Insufficient facilities as a result of the new 
development. 
 
11 WELLINGTON ROAD - Access road is not practical, with York Road being too narrow. Also 
concerned about the increase in social housing.  Not enough facilities in North Weald and the site 
is also home to numerous types of wildlife. 
 
17 WELLINGTON ROAD - Object to the amount of ‘problem family accommodation’ and the 
primary access provision, (road too narrow). 

Page 33



 
19 WELLINGTON ROAD - Lack of infrastructure for example drainage, schools and increased 
traffic.  Also the positioning of the primary access is inappropriate and would be better opening 
onto Merlin Way, Lancaster Road, Blenheim Way or Hurricane Road. 
 
THE BRIARS - Application is overdevelopment of the area and tall flats are inappropriate in the 
village.  The condition of the sewers in the village is also raised, as is the provision of other 
infrastructure in the village. 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT NORTH WEALD BASSETT CP

ESSEX WEST AND HERTFORDSHIRE EAST EURO CONST

28

31

33 32

29

3745

13

33
23

15

35

29 24
41

13

43
47

17 15

19

21

27

27

34

40

7
111315

44d

44a

38

5048

4644
40

34
32

30

1

55

41

53

57
63

44

58

13

20

64

52
45

68 65

Warehouse

Tree

House

Hurricane

1

7

Beech

House

Little Pines
Limetree

House

45

43

34

1

6 2

3

2 to 24

20
1412

1 08

34

1

15

13

9

54

2

6

8

4

52 50

56

16

28

10

12

37

35

18

17

Darlaten Cottag

18

5

8

1

10

11

16

1
11
9

3

27
21

1917

26
32

14
2

36

1

34
36

38
40

45

26
37

11a

11

* *

*

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee B 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 

Application Number: RES/EPF/1030/06 

Site Name: Former Parade Ground, Merlin Way, North 
Weald 

Scale of Plot: 1:2500 

Page 35



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1158/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: North Weald Airfield 

Merlin Way 
North Weald  
Essex 
 

PARISH: North Weald 
 

APPLICANT: EFDC 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of hard surface to car parking area 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The parking area shall only be used for purposes in connection with the use of land 
at North Weald Airfield for recreational purposes, as a showground, an airfield or 
holding markets. 
 

 
 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the retention of hard surface laid on a former grassed parking area for 
a market. 
 
The car parking area is roughly rectangular in shape with a maximum width of 83m and length of 
368m.  Allowing for an irregularity at its eastern end it has a total area of 26,813 square metres.  
The hard is constructed of a permeable membrane covered with 60mm of road planings. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site is located at the eastern end of North Weald Airfield, abutting the northern side of an 
established area of hard surfacing originally provided for the purpose of the airfield.  The site is not 
part of the working airfield and is primarily used in connection with North Weald Market but also in 
connection with gliding/paragliding, air displays, motor shows and many other sports events.  It is 
within the Metropolitan Green Belt but is not part of a Conservation Area. 
 
The hard surface on the market car park was originally a grassed area of 26,813 square metres 
with 3 hardcore tracks, measuring 3 metres wide x 381 metres in length running east to west 
directions. 
 
The Council acquired this airfield in 1980.  The existing car parking provision is over a disused 
runway, which can accommodate 1000 cars.  This provision appears to be substandard, 
considering the wide activities being offered at this airfield.  Saturday markets/gliding/paragliding, 
air displays, motor shows and many other sports events attract over one million visitors per annum 
to this site. 

Page 36



 
 
Relevant History: 
 
There are numerous planning decisions between 1954 and 2003, which relate to land at North 
weald airfield, but none directly relevant to this development. 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
RST27 – North Weald Airfield. 
U3 – Risk of flooding 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this case are the impact of the development on the Green Belt and the 
Council’s policy objectives for North Weald Airfield.  Also relevant are the drainage implications of 
the development. 
 
The formation of a hard surface is not appropriate development in the Green Belt.  It is therefore 
necessary to consider whether any very special circumstances exist that override the harm caused 
by reason of inappropriateness. 
 
The site is part of a long established airfield and situated abutting a much larger expanse of lawful 
hard surface.  The additional hard surfacing in this context does not cause harm to the openness 
of the Green Belt. 
 
Furthermore, the recreational use of the land is lawful and considering the range and number of 
recreational activities that take place on the airfield it is important that it has adequate parking 
provision.  Accordingly, the provision of the hard surface furthers the adopted policy objective of 
promoting and enabling the use and development of North Weald Airfield as a major multi-
functional recreation and leisure centre set out in Local Plan policy RST 27. 
 
The upgrading of this area to a proper car park will enables vehicles to be parked quickly, clearing 
vehicles off the public highway.  On certain occasions the traffic queues extend as far as the M11 
approaches.  During the winter months and during wet spells, the airfield is waterlogged and the 
former grassed car park unusable for its parking needs.  The method of construction of the hard 
surface serves to avoid waterlogging of this area while also not simply causing run-off to adjacent 
areas.  It therefore provides an ideal surface for parking for all weathers that is sensitive to the 
drainage requirements of adjacent land. 
 
Having regard to compliance with policy for North weald Airfield, minimal impact on adjacent land, 
the lack of impact on openness as well as the lawful use of the land, very special circumstances 
that outweigh any harm caused by inappropriateness are considered to exist in this case. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposal is an acceptable form of development that generally accords with adopted planning 
policy and therefore planning permission for the retention of the hard surface could be granted. 
 
 
 

Page 37



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL - No objection. 
 
 
 

Page 38



  

 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee B  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 

Application Number: EPF/1158/06 

Site Name: North Weald Airfield, Merlin Way, North 
Weald 

Scale of Plot: 1:5000 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank


